
 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL 
SERVICES MEETING 

 
3.00 pm TUESDAY, 13TH JULY, 2021 

 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 
All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to 

being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined 
above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
 
 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. The Impact of the Pandemic on Care Homes for 
Adults  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

3 - 8 

4. Coronavirus Pandemic - Update on Recovery and 
Activity  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

9 - 18 

5. Safeguarding 2020/21 - Internal Audit Report   

 To consider the attached report 
 

19 - 32 

6. Current Budget Position   

 Verbal update to be provided by the Chief Officer 
of Social Services 
 

 

7. Forward Work Programme 2021/22   

 To consider the attached report 
 

33 - 46 

8. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

9. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

10. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

  
COMPOSITION: Councillor W R Smith (Chair) 

                 S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors: G Richards, D Sammon and I Thomas 

 
Co-optee(s): (none) 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

The Impact of the Pandemic on Care Homes for 
Adults 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report outlines the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on the care home sector. 
 
1.2 The report outlines the support that has been provided to the sector during this time. 
 
1.3 The report indicates the current position across the sector in Merthyr Tydfil County 

Borough Council and future actions. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1  The scrutiny committee discusses and comments on the issues set out in the report.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The care home sector provides accommodation and support to those individuals 

who, following an assessment of their individual needs, have been identified as 
requiring a higher level of care and support than can be met in their own home. 

 
3.2 In order to provide care to individuals, care homes are required by law to register 

with Care Inspectorate Wales, which is the organisation that regulates care. 
 
3.3 Although there have been amendments to the regulatory arrangements to 

registration the requirement to register the types of care provided remain.  These are 
categorised as: 
 

Date Written June 2021 

Report Author Angela Edevane 

Service Area Adult Social Care 

Committee Date 13th July 2021 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 Residential Care 

 EMI Residential Care 

 General Nursing 

 EMI Nursing 

 Younger Adults 

 Learning Disability 
 
3.4 Care homes can be registered as being able to provide care under more than one of 

these categories.  Of the care homes within the geographical boundaries of Merthyr 
Tydfil there is a mix of care homes that are registered for one category only and 
others that are registered for more than one. 

 
3.5 There are currently 8 older people’s homes and 3 learning disability homes in 

Merthyr Tydfil with various registration arrangements.  These homes can 
accommodate between 4 and 120 people in each, however the smaller homes tend 
to be those providing support to people with a learning disability with the larger 
homes supporting older people or a mix of older people and younger adults. 

 
3.6 At the end of May Merthyr Tydfil CBC were commissioning care home placements 

for 180 people across the different categories, though these will not all be 
commissioned from homes situated within the Merthyr Tydfil area.  In addition, the 
Local Authority directly manages two care homes for Older People and one learning 
disability home. 

 
3.7 The number of people that we support in care homes changes throughout the year 

and during the year 2021 we commissioned 85 new placements and there were 92 
people who left the care home. 

 
3.8 The payment to care homes is paid on an individual basis based on the assessed 

category of care that the individual has been assessed as requiring.  Funding can be 
via the Local Authority, Health Board or the individual where they have been 
assessed as having the financial means to fund their own care.  There are also 
occasions where the funding is made up of a combination of these. 

 
3.9 Of the care homes within the Merthyr Tydfil CBC area, although it would be 

anticipated that these provide care for people who have lived in Merthyr Tydfil prior 
to requiring care in a care home, this is not the case and there are people placed in 
these homes from other Local Authorities and likewise we place people in care 
homes outside Merthyr Tydfil. 

 
3.10 By virtue of their need for care and support in a care home, the majority of people 

living in care homes would be classed as vulnerable in terms of their susceptibility to 
contracting COVID 19.  This placed significant emotional strain on staff working in 
care homes where there were sometimes several deaths within a week.  There was 
also the emotional pressures on families who were unable to be with loved ones at 
the end of their lives. 

 
 

 

Page 4



4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 
4.1 At the beginning of the pandemic the implications for the people living in care homes 

was not truly recognised and the guidance issued by Welsh Government and Public 
Health Wales was changing constantly causing considerable confusion across 
providers of these services. 

 
4.2 This was particularly evident in respect of advice for people moving into a care home 

from hospital, the use of PPE and visiting arrangements. 
 
4.3 In order to address some of these issues regional partnership arrangements were 

put in place to provide as much support as possible in terms of providing information 
and advice and a regional discharge guidance document was developed so that 
there was clarity for both health and care home staff in respect of the testing 
arrangements that needed to be in place prior to discharge to a care home.  This 
group reported to the Silver and Gold governance arrangements that were in place 
with Local Authority and Health Board partners in the Cwm Taf Morgannwg region. 

 
4.4 Despite the considerable efforts of care homes, unfortunately there were occasions 

where there were significant outbreaks and sadly people living in care homes 
contracted COVID 19 and lost their lives to the virus. 

 
4.5 In order to try and protect residents, care homes became closed environments to 

limit the potential of people that they came into contact with.  This had a significant 
effect on the wellbeing of people who lost face to face contact with their loved ones.  
The care home sector quickly adapted to using digital solutions to enable people to 
meet virtually through electronic means and window visits where this was not 
possible.  However, it was recognised that these did not meet the need for social 
contact and was particularly difficult for people with dementia who could not 
understand why their relatives were not coming to visit them. 

 
4.6 As the pandemic progressed further, support was provided to care homes such as 

the provision of PPE via Welsh Government which is distributed via the Local 
Authorities.  Testing of staff and residents in care homes on a weekly basis and 
financial support through the Welsh Government hardship fund which recognised the 
financial stability of care homes was at risk. 

 
4.7 During the early stages of the pandemic testing was not undertaken and staff self-

isolated where they were either symptomatic or had come into contact with someone 
who was displaying symptoms.  Whilst this led to staff shortages, it did not identify 
those staff who had the virus and were not displaying symptoms.  Whole home 
testing was implemented which included testing both staff and residents on a weekly 
basis.  This on occasion resulted in significant numbers of staff having to self-isolate 
at the same time and there was an occasion in one of the local authority managed 
care homes where 13 staff who were non-symptomatic tested positive and needed to 
self-isolate.  

 
4.8 Overall the care homes in Merthyr Tydfil were able to continue to provide sufficient 

staff cover, which was down to the dedication of the staff working in this area. 

Page 5



4.9 In order to monitor the overall position of the prevalence of the virus within care 
homes across the region, a joint group was established led by Public Health Wales.  
The group monitored the results of the weekly testing in care homes and the 28-day 
period where homes were unable to accept any admissions following a positive test 
of a resident or staff member. 

 
4.10 In addition to the 28-day restrictions to admissions following a positive COVID test, 

advice from PHW was that all new residents admitted to a care home were required 
to isolate for a 14-day period even if they had 2 negative COVID tests. 

 
4.11 The impact of these measures to limit the potential for outbreaks in the care homes 

meant that capacity across the sector was significantly reduced, resulting in people 
remaining in hospital or the community as they could not move into the care homes.  
The limitations to admissions also meant that people were not accessing respite and 
additional pressures were placed on carers who were not having a break from their 
caring role. 

 
4.12 The restrictions to admissions also meant that care homes were financially 

detrimented as they were operating at levels that meant that they were not financially 
viable and were subject to additional costs due to staff absences though people 
either contracting COVID or needing to self-isolate.  Welsh Government recognised 
the potential for homes being unable to operate which would place additional 
pressures on the fragile care home sector and introduced support through the 
Hardship fund which is administered by the Local authority. 

 
4.13 Initially payments were paid based on the occupancy levels of the home utilising the 

baseline that a home needs to have occupancy levels of 90% to ensure that they are 
financially viable.  In addition to the payment of voids in care homes, a standard 
additional £50 per week per resident is now being paid. 

 
4.14 In January 2021 a vaccination program was implemented and care home staff and 

residents were given priority for the vaccination.  This was a significant 
organisational challenge for the Health Board as the only vaccine available was 
Pfizer which needed specific planning for its transportation and to ensure the limited 
supply was utilised appropriable to prevent any waste. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The care home sector has faced a challenging period, the likes of which they have 

not experienced before and hopefully will not experience again.  I am glad to say that 
they have responded to the challenge incredibly over this period adapting to new 
ways of working which is a tribute to the staff that work in this area and their 
continuation of being able to continue to support some of the most vulnerable people 
in our society cannot be fully appreciated. 

 
5.2  Staff and residents have in the main been vaccinated unless they have chosen not to 

take up the vaccine or have been unable to be vaccinated on medical grounds and 
arrangements are in place for any new residents or staff to be vaccinated if they 
have not been vaccinated via other arrangements. 

 

Page 6



5.3  Thanks to the revised working arrangements and the success of the vaccination 
program, we are now seeing a significant decrease in the number of cases of the 
virus in care homes and are now seeing periods where all the care homes in Merthyr 
Tydfil have had no positive cases. 

 
5.4  Although the prevalence has decreased in the wider community, staff working within 

care homes continue to be tested weekly using the PCR test that is checked by the 
laboratory and staff also test themselves twice weekly using lateral flow tests.  At this 
time there are no plans to reduce this level of testing within the care homes. 

 
5.5 The prevalence of the virus continues to be monitored via the joint care home group 

which has now been stepped down to 2-weekly as the incidents have decreased 
significantly. 

 
5.6 Welsh Government continues to provide PPE to the care sector and this is 

distributed via a regional arrangement with the Joint equipment stores and again we 
have not been advised that this will cease in the near future. 

 
5.7 Financial support continues to be provided via the hardship fund based on the 

number of voids and the additional payment of £50 per week.  Whilst we are seeing 
a number of homes that continue to receive the void payments these are reducing as 
people are being admitted to the care homes.  There is no anticipated end date for 
this financial support and it is recognised that if it were to cease in the near future 
there are care homes that would cease to be financially viable and this includes the 
home operated by MTCBC.  To date care homes with Merthyr Tydfil have been 
provided with £1.5 million of support through this scheme.  The breakdown of 
payments is illustrated below: 

  
Void Funding Support 

 20/21 21/22 (Apr & May) Total 

Independent Sector £583,904.06 £79,419.14 £663,323.20 

Own Homes £171,038.00 £54,670.80 £225,708.80 

Annual Total £754,942.06 £134,089.94  

 
National Fee Uplift (£50pw) 

 20/21 21/22 (Apr & May) Total 

Independent Sector £418,410.91 £76,386.64 £494,797.55 

Own Homes £92,516.16 £13,285.87 £105,802.03 

Annual Total £510,927.07 £89,672.51  

 
5.8  As referenced earlier in the report, MTCBC also places people in care homes 

outside of the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough area and work is currently being 
undertaken on a regional basis to identify the care homes within the Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg boundary that will be a significant financial risk if the funding were 
removed.  This work will form part of an overarching Market Stability Report and is 
nearly finalised and the outcome of this work will be reported via the Adults Service 
Group to Transformation Program Board. 

 
5.9 The restrictions to care homes have been lifted to some extent and at this time 

2 visitors can now visit at the same time though have to have a negative Lateral Flow 
Test (LFT). 

Page 7



5.10 The Older Persons Commissioner has produced a report based on experiences of 
Older People in care Homes titled “Roundtable Report: Older People in Care Homes 
Roundtable - 23 April 2021”.  The report has made a number of recommendations 
focussing on actions required of Welsh Government and the regulators (CIW).   

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 Ultimately we would want to return to the pre-covid position in respect of the care 

homes, though realise that whilst there has been a significant improvement in the 
position, there are still further areas that need to be resolved. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Until such time that the risk of the virus is lifted, then our priority is to ensure that 

people living in care homes are kept as safe as possible whilst recognising the 
impact of any further restrictions will have on the emotional wellbeing of the 
individuals. 

 
7.2 We need to complete the analysis of the financial risks that care homes are facing in 

the near future should the hardship fund be discontinued. 
 
7.3 We need to continue to monitor the position in respect of the virus and utilise the 

learning from the past 15 months to provide the appropriate response should the 
position require future actions.  

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 The work we are undertaking around care homes links with the Living Well wellbeing 

objective.  
 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES  
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 
 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
                CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES and  
DEPUTY LEADER  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 8



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Coronavirus Pandemic - Update on Recovery and 
Activity 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 Coronavirus (COVID 19) has had a devastating impact on many peoples’ lives in 
Wales.  The lockdown period and the requirements for self-isolation and shielding 
over the past 15 months have had a serious impact on well-being and quality of life 
in local communities. 

 
1.2 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, along with partners from other public bodies; 

and third and independent sectors, have continued to provide a targeted front-line 
response to the constantly changing situation that the coronavirus pandemic has 
presented.  Working within guidance provided by the Welsh Government the Council 
has continued to deliver core services with a shared commitment to working in 
partnership. 

 
1.3 The virus did not alter Social Services duties to vulnerable children, although 

Children’s Services were required to make a range of adjustments in line with Stay 
At Home Rules in the initial lockdowns.  Managers and staff worked closely together 
to look at ways in which we could discharge our duties to the public, whilst promoting 
both public and staff safety.  However, due to the nature of requirements of 
delivering direct care to the most vulnerable people we support, both Children and 
Adult Services were not in the position to advise staff to remain at home.  In order to 
maintain the safety of the workforce and the people that are supported there was a 
need to revise working practices in line with guidance issued by Public Health Wales.  

 

1.4 This report will offer Scrutiny Committee Members an overview of the distance 
travelled from where we were in the initial lockdown to where we are now.   

Date Written 28th June 2021 

Report Author Lisa Curtis Jones  

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 13th July 2021 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 Members are asked to review and note its content and consider the future plans to 
support the Social Services recovery across the County Borough. 

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 On 23rd March 2020 the Prime Minister and First Minister made announcements 

outlining the Stay At Home Rules which increased the emphasis on working from 
home and social distancing in a bid to stop the spread of coronavirus1.   

 
3.2 The link between deprivation and people having a significant negative impact from 

coronavirus has been greatly researched2.  It has been identified that people in 
deprived areas are at higher risk of exposure to Covid-19 due to a number of factors 
such as: people on low incomes are more likely to work in jobs that put them at 
greater risk of exposure to the coronavirus; people in deprived areas are more likely 
to have long-term health conditions and be at greater risk of suffering severe 
symptoms from the virus if exposed; and over cramped or poor housing conditions.  
The impact of coronavirus on communities has been huge; with all areas of local 
government being affected by the need to meet new and emerging needs 
exacerbated by the impact of the pandemic.  Every aspect of Council activity has 
been impacted by the lockdown. 

 
3.3 A report was provided to scrutiny in September 2020 outlining the actions we needed 

to take following the initial lockdowns and the impact this had on the service.  The 
report outlined the actions taken in the various assessment and care settings within 
Children’s Services and Adult Social Care Services.  It also outlined how social 
services continued to deliver key services, whilst also meeting unscheduled need 
that emerged within communities across Merthyr Tydfil as a result of the lockdown.  
It also identified lessons learned and future plans that were under development to 
address the recovery and resilience of the services.  This report is to update Scrutiny 
on that recovery journey.  

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 

Children’s Services  
4.1 It must be noted that the pandemic never altered our duties to vulnerable children, 

and although Children’s Services were required to make a range of adjustments in 
line with Stay At Home Rules and changing measures in place, children were still 
seen and visited.  Throughout the pandemic we have always operated a system that 
has needed to include face to face contact.  Managers and staff worked closely 
together to look at ways in which we could ensure we discharged our duties to the 
public, whilst promoting both public and staff safety.  

 

                                            
1 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/full-guidance-on-staying-at-home-and-away-from-others/full-
guidance-on-staying-at-home-and-away-from-others  
2 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/conditionsanddiseases/articles/c
oronaviruscovid19roundup/2020-03-26  Page 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/full-guidance-on-staying-at-home-and-away-from-others/full-guidance-on-staying-at-home-and-away-from-others
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/full-guidance-on-staying-at-home-and-away-from-others/full-guidance-on-staying-at-home-and-away-from-others
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/conditionsanddiseases/articles/coronaviruscovid19roundup/2020-03-26
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/conditionsanddiseases/articles/coronaviruscovid19roundup/2020-03-26


4.2 When the Stay At Home Rules were initially announced, Children’s Services 
Management Team (CSMT) developed the following in response to corporate 
direction and in pursuit of maintaining essential statutory services: 

 

 CSMT daily dial in to note new information about staff capacity in the service, 
agree, prioritise, manage risks and share information. 

 Held staff briefings prior to 23rd March 2020 to support, inform and involve staff. 

 Consultation with foster carers. 

 Develop 1-minute Guides for staff in relation to: 
 Telephone Triage and PPE. 
 CP Conferences and Core Group Meetings. 
 Keeping in touch with CLA and Contact. 
 Working from Home. 

 Contribute to Silver and Bronze command to coordinate work with partners in 
relation to safeguarding children. 

 Develop and distribute resource packs for CLA, foster carers and families with 
care and support plans. 

 Develop a process for providing urgent support to families where a parent 
requires in-patient treatment. 

 Maintained Resource Panel on a weekly basis to ensure families and staff can 
access the resources required to support families. 

 RAG rated cases and dip samples at week 4 to provide independent assurance 
that children and families are being seen appropriately. 

 CMT agreed the Outline Business Case for additional resources including social 
worker, support workers and foster care placements for cases where a parent or 
parents are in hospital. 

 Worked to ensure that staff had the necessary IT equipment to work from home.  
 
4.3 In fairness the above is just a summary of the work completed.  The initial lockdown 

required a change in everyone’s way of working and a change in culture as people 
adapted to working at home, and online assessments.  For Children’s Services it was 
business as usual, but the office base became people’s home addresses.  Referrals 
were still received via the MASH and Early Help Hub and triaged as we would 
previously. 
 
Adults Services  

4.4 Due to the nature of requirements of delivering direct care to the most vulnerable 
people we support, Adult Services were not in the position to advise staff to remain 
at home.  In order to maintain the safety of the workforce and the people that are 
supported there was a need to revise working practices in line with guidance issued 
by Public Health Wales.   

 
4.5 When the Stay At Home Rules were announced, Adult Services implemented the 

following actions to continue to meet essential statutory services and support 
vulnerable adults:  

 

 Worked with IT to ensure that all care management staff had the ability to work 
remotely.  

 Revised working practices to incorporate symptom checking as part of the 
assessment arrangements.  

Page 11



 Developed individual team arrangements within the assessment teams to enable 
them to socially distance.  

 Participated and contributed to regional joint health & social care bronze and 
silver planning groups to develop a response.  

 Worked in partnership with CTMUHB, RCT & Bridgend to increase bed capacity 
which in Merthyr Tydfil included the re-commissioning of the former Glan-Yr-Afon 
nursing home as a step-down facility (Marsh House).  

 Implemented daily calls to care home providers.  

 Worked with Procurement team to obtain a supply of PPE for use across directly 
delivered and commissioned Adult Social Care Services.  

 Discontinued the commissioning panel meeting and implemented alternative 
mechanisms for the commissioning of services.  

 Liaised with RCT to revise arrangements for Deprivation of Liberty 
responsibilities.  

 Worked with our commissioned domiciliary care providers to agree an approach 
to ensuring that the most vulnerable individuals continued to receive support.  

 Developed a contingency plan for assessment services should there be a 
significant reduction in available staff as a result of the pandemic.  

 Requested contingency arrangements from commissioned providers.  
 
4.6 Again the above is a summary of the work completed by Adult Services during the 

initial lockdown.  Staff had to adapt to changes very quickly.  For those providing 
direct care they couldn’t work from home.  We needed to ensure that each staff 
member had the appropriate Personal Protection Equipment and followed the 
relevant guidelines.  

 
Workforce  

4.7 It was expected that there would be a reduction in the availability of staff throughout 
this period and plans were put in place to manage high levels of staff absence and 
initially there were a considerable number of staff self-isolating due to other family 
members presenting with symptoms.  Weekly data was provided to Welsh 
Government in respect of workforce availability across the sector.  

 
4.8 There were a cohort of staff who needed to shield themselves in line with guidance 

and wherever possible these staff have been provided with the necessary IT 
equipment to enable them to continue to work from home.  The shielding period is 
now over. 

 
4.9 We saw an increase in agency staff within the care home sector due to having to 

cover shifts when other staff isolating or shielding.  Staff from Day Services were 
redeployed to help in our care homes when required in the early stages of the 
pandemic.  

 
4.10 Contact and Trace was set up and was advising staff when they needed to isolate 

and for how long as per Welsh Government guidelines.  There needed to be a 
change in culture for staff in care homes regards car sharing and having breaks 
together as this could impact on the number of staff who would need to isolate if 
anyone tested positive.  

 

Page 12



4.11 Testing regimes were introduced in the care home sector initially and this impacted 
on staff having to isolate as some would test positive and have no symptoms.  

 
General 

4.12 During the period of the pandemic to ensure that communities are supported, and 
statutory duties are undertaken, there was extensive joint working between public 
services.  Throughout the period Social Care worked in partnership with Public 
Health Wales, Cwm Taf UHB, Welsh Government and neighbouring Local 
Authorities.  

 
4.13 A system of silver and bronze command meetings took place to promote a joined-up 

response by services.  
 
4.14 Initially the provision of PPE was a significant concern for practitioners both within 

the Local Authority and social care service providers.  Whilst social care providers 
that support with personal care were accustomed to using PPE as part of their 
normal work pattern, there were additional requirements that were not normal 
practice such as the wearing of masks.  Other staff such as Social Workers across 
Children’s and Adults Services would not normally use PPE when coming in contact 
with the people they support, and this was an area that required new ways of 
working and clear guidance for staff.  PPE has become the ‘norm’ now and there are 
no current concerns re supply.  

 
4.15 We did see a decline in referrals across both Adults and Children.  Also within Adult 

Services individuals were declining support and packages of care due to fear of 
having workers in their home and risk of infection.  Some families made the difficult 
decision not to send family members to Day Services provision because of the risks.  

 
4.16 Visiting in care homes for both Adults and Children’s settings was halted face to 

face, with residents only seeing family members through window visiting or via digital 
means.  This was distressing for both residents and families.  

 
5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 In many ways Covid has now become part of our day to day working and we are now 

trying to focus on recovery and areas within the improvement plan that were delayed 
because of the pandemic.  

 
5.2 Referrals across Adults and Children’s are back to pre-covid levels.  Some modelling 

work across Wales forecast an increase in referrals coming into the service, we 
haven’t seen this as yet but what we are seeing is a complexity in cases certainly 
within Children’s Services and in Adult Mental Health Services.  We have been 
mindful that as services reopen and when partner agencies increase their level of 
contact with families, we will see an increase in referral rates.  In the last quarter we 
saw a 43% increase in Early Help requests.  

 
5.3 Within the past 16 months our Carers Officer came into post, and this was a timely 

appointment as we are seeing an increase in the need for carers support.  Some 
families have reached crisis in the last months due to limited support and not wanting 
to access services due to the perceived risks.  

 

Page 13



5.4 Court work is now adapting to a new way of working and intervention work has 
increased significantly.  The court has been dealing with the backlog of cases over 
the past months and hearings are now being held virtually.  

 
5.5 All staff are being regularly tested.  Initially only care home staff, but now home tests 

have been provided to all social work teams so that staff can be tested twice weekly 
via lateral flow devices.  This has become increasingly significant since the new 
DELTA variant has been detected.  We are not at this stage seeing the level of staff 
having to isolate as we did at the start of the pandemic, although as the guidance 
changes and people can have more contact with others then this may change.  

 
5.6 Staff within the teams are adapting to agile working with teams working part time at 

home and part in office.  This allows them to continue to socially distance and 
appears to be working well for staff.  We are obviously mindful of support to new staff 
and students, and those who may need more support and plans are in place to 
address this as we continue to adapt to further plans to progress the agile working in 
future. 

 
5.7 Digital working has made significant progress in the past year with assessments, 

conferences, review meeting, supervision, team meetings and business meetings 
taking place on teams or other digital platforms.  In some instances, this has saved 
travel time, but we are conscious that staff spend a lot of time in front of a screen.  
Children and Young People have been encouraged to participate in their review 
meetings as feel confident in using the technology and speaking when not in a room 
physically with others.  Digital working will continue to be developed.  However, we 
will return to face-to-face conferences for families at some point as guidance is 
updated, as for some families the online meeting is not always easy.  

 
5.8 The vaccine programme has been a major success.  The roll out started in January 

2021.  Staff were keen to participate, and I am only aware of 10 staff members who 
to date have declined to have the immunisation for personal reasons.  The majority 
of our staff have now had the second vaccine.  Those who have not yet had the 
vaccine is due to either testing positive for covid and the vaccine had to be given 
some weeks after the positive test result or because they needed a different vaccine 
due to allergies.  Across Cwm Taf Morgannwg data shows that 88.5% of social care 
staff have taken up the vaccine. 

 
5.9 Regional Partnership working has recommenced.  Governance arrangements have 

been updated with a clearer structured plan set under both Adults and Children’s 
Boards.  Priorities have been set with some focus on recovery from COVID.  

 
5.10 The care home sector had been affected with several care homes having a 

significant number of deaths which had an impact on the financial viability.  At this 
time financial support provided by Welsh Government through the “Hardship Fund” is 
covering some of the financial risk, however the longer-term impact will need to be 
monitored.  This support will continue until September 2021, with a view to tapering 
off at that time.  Further guidance is awaited from Welsh Government.  

 
5.11 Within the Care home sector as outlined in the ‘where we were’ section, care homes 

closed their doors and no visitors were allowed in for a considerable period of time.  
Restrictions only started to lift in March 2021 following a very difficult year where 
residents could only see family members through the window or via digital means.  

Page 14



Initially we introduced outside visiting with social distancing measures in place, but 
this could prove difficult if the weather was poor.  Outside pods were provided by 
Welsh Government and some providers bought gazebos and other equipment to 
facilitate outside visiting.  Currently two family members can visit but have to 
maintain social distancing and be tested before entering premises.  

 
5.12 Linked to above we are seeing a reduction in the number of incidents of care homes 

being in ‘red’ category, which means a staff member or resident has tested positive.  
This has meant that care homes have been in a position to recommence respite 
placements to assist families who require support.  This was only offered in the past 
year if there was a crisis due to the risks.  

 
5.13 Although our Day Services remained open throughout the past 15 months it was very 

much at reduced capacity.  We are now able to review this position and look to 
increase the numbers who are able to access the service.  We are not yet at full 
capacity due to the measures in place around social distancing.  Also, some families 
are still nervous about attending these services.  When Ty Enfys reopens in the next 
few weeks (Day Services facility at Kier Hardie) then this will assist in increasing 
capacity.  The Day Services at Kier Hardie has undergone a huge transformation as 
part of the regional work in conjunction with the Health Board.  

 
5.14 Within Children’s Services we have increased our capacity within the Children’s 

Outreach team in an attempt to support recovery in this area and to cope with future 
demand.  

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 
6.1 We want to provide an excellent service to the public of Merthyr Tydfil. 
 
6.2 We wish to continue to improve our services and change and adapt when required. 
 
6.3 We want to build on the positive partnership working over the past 15 months. 
 
6.4 We want to provide the right services, at the right time and at the right place. 
 
6.5 We want to support Adults and Children to recover from the pandemic and offer 

support at the most appropriate time. 
 
6.6 We want to ensure our workforce receive the support they need now and in the 

future to recover from the past 15 months.  
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 
7.1 Focus on the key priorities for improvement and develop effective response activities 

that will support services to make positive progress towards achieving these. 
 
7.2 Continue to positively progress all tasks and actions within the Living Well themes of 

both the Council’s Corporate Wellbeing Plan; and the Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan (RTI). 

 

Page 15



7.3 As we look to recover from the pandemic then we need to address all aspects of the 
RTI plan.  We need to revisit all the timescales and ensure we get back on track 
addressing all areas of the plan. 

 
7.4 Continue to work with our partners across Cwm Taf Morgannwg.  There are various 

projects underway which we will contribute to eg. Market stability assessment and 
IPC are carrying out a community modelling of services.  

 
7.5 We need to be prepared for new legislation eg. Liberty Protects Safeguards (LPS) 

replaces the Deprivation of Liberty (DOLS) legislation which will commence in 2022.  
We are currently addressing the backlog of cases which occurred during COVID so 
that we will be up-to-date and ready for the new legislation in April 2022.  There will 
be implications for Children’s Services under LPS too and the Head of Children’s 
Services is taking a lead on this for the 16+ cohort.  

 
7.6 Ensure we support staff in recovering from the pandemic.  Regular testing is 

available now across the whole service and the vaccine programme has been rolled 
out.  

 
7.7 In the medium to longer term we will need to monitor the impact of the seasonal flu 

virus as many of the symptoms are similar to Covid 19.  This could potentially result 
in an increase in short term staff absences as they need to self-isolate if they 
become symptomatic.  Though this will be mitigated in some way through access to 
testing it could still mean an increase in short term unplanned absences which will be 
difficult to plan for.  

 
7.8 The longer-term impact of the pandemic on the people we support will need to be 

monitored, there are already emerging examples of chronic symptoms associated 
with the disease and examples of delays in accessing health services both of which 
will have an effect of a person’s ability to manage their own care.  

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 This report specifically links to the Living Well objective within the Council’s 

Corporate Wellbeing Plan: People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.   

  
Through the continued provision of services through the pandemic we will also be 
able to demonstrate our team’s contribution to support progress against other 
wellbeing objectives set down by the Council in focus in the Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan.  These objectives are:  

  

 Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals; and 

 Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure making Merthyr Tydfil 
an attractive destination. 

 

LISA CURTIS JONES  
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES)  

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL 

SERVICES AND DEPUTY LEADER 
Page 16



 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Safeguarding 2020/21 - Internal Audit Report 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Each year the Local Authority has a number of areas that are subject to review and 

scrutiny by Internal Audit.  This year safeguarding was listed as one of the areas that 
was to be considered.  There was some time delay due to COVID and work 
commitments, but Internal Audit commenced discussions with relevant officers and 
completed the Audit work in April 2021. 

  
1.2 The Audit involved interviews with key officers, reviewing of policies and audit of 

case files.  
 
1.3 Safeguarding has been an area that has been reviewed and inspected on numerous 

occasions.  Previous reports have been presented to Scrutiny in respect of other 
inspections and their recommendations. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  The scrutiny committee discusses and comments on the issues set out in the report.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The internal audit was carried out by SWAP Internal Audit Services. 
 
3.2 This was undertaken as part of the agreed 2020-21 Internal Audit Plan and through 

discussions with senior management.   
 
 

Date Written 28th June 2021 

Report Author Jon Eyre 

Service Area Safeguarding 

Committee Date 13th July 2021 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



3.3 The objective of this audit was to assess the degree to which the Council is meeting 
its duties, under compliance with the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 
2014 to preserve the safety and wellbeing of vulnerable customers.  The period 
covered was the calendar year 2020. 

 
3.4 The Risk Based Internal Auditing process (RBIA) was used which is recognised as 

best practice.  A preliminary assessment of the risks relevant to the activity under 
review was completed as part of the initial planning process and engagement 
objectives reflect the results of this assessment.  The possibility of significant errors, 
fraud, non-compliance and other exposures were considered when developing the 
engagement objectives. 

 
3.5 In order to assess the effectiveness of Merthyr Tydfil CBC’s safeguarding a workplan 

was developed involving access to the electronic database, electronic paperwork 
and policies.  These were scrutinised by the auditor.  Discussions were also held 
with the Principal Manager for Safeguarding, Heads of Service for Children’s and 
Adult Services and Human Resources representatives. 

 

4.0 SUMMARY OF FINDINGS FROM THE REPORT 
 

4.1 The internal audit report concluded that Merthyr Tydfil’s safeguarding services were 
the third highest out of a possible four categories.  The overall score ranked just 
below the highest category of ‘substantial’ with an assurance opinion towards the 
higher end of ‘reasonable’. 

 

 
 
4.2 The report detailed that: 
 
 There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in 

place.  Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified 
which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

 
4.3 The report highlights: 
  

 Very positive relationship between Merthyr Tydfil’s Multi Agency Safeguarding 
Hub (MASH) and all levels of operational and managerial staff. 

 Positive use of Disclosure and Barring Service checks by Human Resources to 
aid safe recruitment. 

 Positive use of the Wales Community Care Information System (WCCIS) to keep 
a good standard of social care record keeping. 

 
 

Page 20



 Effective responses to the Covid-19 pandemic with Merthyr Tydfil CBC 
Safeguarding leading a co-ordinated multi agency response ensuring services 
remained safe, effective and necessary Safeguarding Board activities remained 
in place. 

 
Full details of the audit report can be found at Appendix 1.  

 

5.0 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 The review was very thorough and as a result of the audit there were 3 very clear 

recommendations: 
 

 Safeguarding training to be available for non-social services front-line staff 
without computer access. 

 All Elected Members to receive safeguarding training. 

 Corporate Safeguarding Policy to be updated within strict timescales. 
 

5.2 In respect of the recommendations above then each has been addressed or there 
are plans in place to ensure the local authority meets these requirements.  Officers 
have already started to pilot appropriate online safeguarding learning for staff and 
elected members.  Discussions are taking place with the Cwm Taf training team and 
Human Resources around staff accessing training when they don’t have access to 
computers.  Also, the Corporate Safeguarding Policy has been reviewed and 
updated.  

 
5.3 This report has been presented to the Chief Executive and to the Corporate 

Safeguarding Reference group.  All findings and recommendations will be monitored 
there.  

 

6.0 OTHER OBSERVATIONS  
 
6.1 An additional issue was picked up by the audit regarding an Adult Safeguarding case 

where an admin error resulted in a referral not being saved in the correct place.  This 
has been addressed and no further action is required.  

 

7.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
7.1 The work we are undertaking around safeguarding, links with the Best Start in Life 

and the Living Well wellbeing objectives. 
 
 
 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES  
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 
 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL 

SERVICES AND DEPUTY LEADER 
 
 
 

Page 21



BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Page 22



 

 
 

Working in Partnership to Deliver Audit Excellence 

Safeguarding 
2020/21 
 
 
Final Report 

 
Issue Date: 11 June 2021 
 

P
age 23



 

 

 Page | 2 

 

Executive Summary 
 

Assurance Opinion Number of Actions 

 

Reasonable Priority Number 

There is a generally sound system of governance, 
risk management and control in place. Some issues, 
non-compliance or scope for improvement were 
identified which may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Priority 1 0 

Priority 2 2 

Priority 3 1 

Total 3 

 

Audit Conclusion 

The following areas were found to be well controlled: 

• A strong working relationship is maintained with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg multi agency support hub.  This includes operational, managerial and senior 
leadership team staff attending meetings led by this hub.    

• A Disclosure Barring Service (DBS) Policy is used to guide the HR Team in identifying roles for which the differing levels of DBS check should be applied 
to each type of role.  This helps ensure that people who may represent a threat to vulnerable members of the community are not recruited into roles 
in which they would be working with these people directly. 

• Safeguarding incidents are logged and tracked using the WCCIS system.  This is audited by the Care Inspectorate for Wales regularly. 

• In response to the Covid-19 Pandemic, the Social Services Directorate worked with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg multi agency support hub to ensure the 
delivery of vital services could be sustained.  Services returned to normal by September 2020.  Evidence was available to show Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Authority and its multi-agency safeguarding partners worked closely with the CTM Safeguarding Board Business unit and achieved an effective 
emergency response whereby quantitative and qualitative data were shared and sufficiently scrutinised.  This change was mobilised quickly, was well 
supported. Reassurances were made to the Safeguarding Board that effective safeguarding measures remained in place. 

 
However, we also identified some areas for improvement: 

• Staff training is inconsistent and non-Social Services front-line staff, who do not have access to computers, are currently not being reached. 

• At the time of the audit, the Elected Members did not receive Safeguarding training.  Since we raised this issue, HR and Democratic Services have been 
working to roll out training to the Elected Members. 

• The Corporate Safeguarding Policy is in place, but has yet to be updated to reference the 2019 Wales Safeguarding Procedures.  It should be noted that 
2019 update constituted little material change to the procedures, so the risk presented here is minimal. 

 

P
age 24



 

 

 Page | 3 

 

Finally, we have noted one instance in which an agency member of staff, who no longer works for the Council, completed a safeguarding referral, but made two 
administration errors in doing so.  There is no need for these to be corrected, as they relate to a historical referral, which has since been closed. 
 

Background 

An audit review of Safeguarding was undertaken by SWAP Internal Audit Services as part of the 2020/21 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s Annual Internal 
Audit Plan.  Safeguarding denotes the ethical and legal obligations organisations have to protect the health, well-being and human rights of individuals.  The aim 
is to ensure that all people can live free from abuse, harm and neglect.   
 
This is primarily achieved through maintaining compliance with Part 7 of the Social Care & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 (introduced in April 2016); which explains 
the duty to report to the Council any adult or child suspected to be at risk 
 
It should be noted that, during the period under review, the Safeguarding Team faced unprecedented challenges presented by the Covid-19 Pandemic and 
Lockdown.  We therefore considered the degree to which novel risks had been managed during this time. 
 

 

Corporate Risk Assessment 

Objective 

The objective will be to assess the degree to which the Council is meeting its duties, and is preserving the safety and wellbeing of vulnerable customers, in 
compliance with the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. 

Risk 
Inherent Risk 
Assessment  

Manager’s Initial 
Assessment  

Auditor’s 
Assessment  

A customer, or member of staff, suffers harm. High Medium Low 

Scope 

We achieved the objective of this audit by reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the following controls; as operating during the period: 1 January 2020 to 
31 December 2020: 
1. A corporate process is in place for maintaining relationships with the local multi agency support hub for both Adults and Children and a dialogue is 

maintained to ensure shared learning. 
2. A clear Safeguarding Policy is in place and is available to all staff. 
3. Safeguarding training is provided to new and existing staff on an ongoing basis.  The training is tailored to the requirements of the Organisation and is 

adapted to reflect new developments as required. 
4. Staff and contractors working with vulnerable customers are identified and vetted appropriately. 
5. Referrals are logged, monitored and escalated appropriately. 
6. Additional risks presented by the Covid-19 Pandemic and Lockdown have been managed effectively. 

P
age 25



 

 

 Page | 4 

 

Findings and Outcomes 
 

1 A customer, or member of staff, suffers harm. Medium 

  

1.1 Finding and Action 

Issue Risk 

Some improvements could be made to the current safeguarding training arrangements 

Without a consistent safeguarding training 
programme, there is a risk that the Council’s 
ability to demonstrate a commitment to fulfilling 
its duty of care to vulnerable residents is 
compromised; resulting in reputational damage. 

Findings 

All staff are required to complete a standard e-learning module.  The e-learning module is provided by the NHS, who provide the HR Team with reports of which 
staff have completed the training. 
 
Social Services staff are then provided regular, in-depth training by the Cwm Taf Morgannwg multi agency support hub. 
 
However: 

1. Most non-Social Services frontline staff do not have immediate access to computers and so.  They were invited to attend the safeguarding eLearning 
course at the Civic Centre building together.  However, this was cancelled, before it could take place, due to the Covid-19 Pandemic.  HR have since 
planned a means of conducting this training within a council building; using the current Covid-19 safety guidelines. 

2. The training attendance reports from the NHS are infrequent and irregular.  This hinders efforts to monitor attendance centrally. Plans are being put in 
place by Human Resources to address this. 

  
The above issues inhibit the Council's ability to demonstrate all workers are fully aware of their duty to report and the Council is doing all it can to fulfil its duty 
of care to its vulnerable residents and customers. 
 
The HR Team explained that the Corporate Safeguarding Reference Group had already identified this issue themselves.  They meet quarterly and so could 
receive these quarterly attendance reports going forward.  The CSRG then report to SLT, where required, so could escalate any significant attendance issues 
identified. 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 26



 

 

 Page | 5 

 

Action Priority Score 2 

The Organisational Development Manager has agreed to: 
1. Identify those staff working directly with vulnerable people in performing their roles. 
2. Provide all non-Social Services frontline workers with the equipment required to access the e-learning training. 
3. Run more frequent attendance reports and continue to provide these to the quarterly Corporate Safeguarding Reference Groups. 

SWAP Ref: 45122 
Management Response  

Agreed. 

Responsible Officer  Organisational Development Manager Timescale  30 September 2021 

 
  

P
age 27



 

 

 Page | 6 

 

1.2 Finding and Action 

Issue Risk 

Safeguarding training should be being provided to Elected Members 

In not providing safeguarding training to 
Members, there is a risk that key strategic 
decisions are being made regarding the 
Council’s approach to Safeguarding; without 
sufficient understanding of the implications.  
This could result in reputational damage. 

Findings 

The Council has a duty of care to the vulnerable persons in its jurisdiction.  As key parts of the Council's governance and risk management framework, the Elected 
Members, and member committees, share in this duty of care.  It is therefore important that they are appraised of the risks presented in this regard and are 
adequately prepared to manage them. 
 
At the time of the audit, the Elected Members did not receive Safeguarding training.  Since we raised this issue, HR and Democratic Services have been working 
to roll out training to the Elected Members. 
 

 

Action Priority Score 2 

The Organisational Development Manager has agreed to ensure that safeguarding training is provided to all Elected Members. 
SWAP Ref: 45204 

Management Response  

Training can be provided immediately, but as the Elected Members will be on leave over August, it is likely that most will complete it between September and 
November 2021.  

Responsible Officer  Organisational Development Manager Timescale  30 November 2021 

  

P
age 28



 

 

 Page | 7 

 

1.3 Finding and Action 

Issue Risk 

The Corporate Safeguarding Policy needs to reference most recent guidance 

There is an opportunity to improve the 
effectiveness with which the Corporate 
Safeguarding Policy is managed.  This should 
result in a better Council wide awareness of 
Safeguarding 

Findings 

The Council maintains a comprehensive Corporate Safeguarding Policy, which references the primary relevant legislation (the Social Services and Well-being 
(Wales) Act 2014).  However: 
1. It has yet to be updated to reference the 2019 Wales Safeguarding Procedures.  It should be noted that 2019 update constituted little material change to 

the procedures, so the risk presented here is minimal. 
2. It was produced in 2015 and was supposed to be reviewed in 2017, but appears not have been reviewed since production. 
3. Pg. 2 states that review is expected every three years, but then Pg. 7 says that review is expected every two years. 
 

 

Action Priority Score 3 

The Safeguarding Principal Manager has agreed to update the Corporate Safeguarding Policy.  This will include adding reference to the 2019 version of the Wales 
Safeguarding Procedures and establishing a clearly defined deadline for the next review. 

SWAP Ref: 45121 
Management Response  

This issue was raised verbally by the Auditor in February 2019, at which point management assure that the Corporate Safeguarding Policy was updated.  This 
included adding reference to the 2019 version of the Wales Safeguarding Procedures and establishing a clearly defined deadline for the next review.   

Responsible Officer  Safeguarding Principal Manager  Timescale  Complete 

  

P
age 29



 

 

 Page | 8 

 

Other Observations 

1. Of our sample of 10 Adult's and Children's safeguarding referrals, we found one instance in which the referral was processed by an agency member of 
staff; who temporarily joined the Adult's Team during a period of low capacity.  They recorded the details of the referral sufficiently within the WCCIS 
system, but did not attach the physical referral form itself.  This means we cannot assure that this referral was entered accurately into the system.   

 
The agency member of staff no longer works in the team and the referral has been completed, so there is no further action to take. 

 

 

  

P
age 30



 

 

 Page | 9 

 

Audit Framework and Definitions 
 

Assurance Definitions 

No 
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk 
management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Limited 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management and 
control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable 
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement 
were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Substantial 
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied 
to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

 

Corporate Risk Assessment Definitions  Categorisation of Actions  

Risk Reporting Implications 
 In addition to the corporate risk assessment it is important that management know 

how important the required action is to their service. Each action has been given a 
priority rating at service level with the following definitions: 

High 
Issues that we consider need to be brought to the 
attention of both senior management and the Audit 
Committee. 

 

Priority 1 
Findings that are fundamental to the integrity of the service’s 
business processes and require the immediate attention of 
management. 

Medium 
Issues which should be addressed by management in 
their areas of responsibility. 

 

Priority 2 Important findings that need to be resolved by management. 

Low 
Issues of a minor nature or best practice where some 
improvement can be made. 

 

Priority 3 Finding that requires attention. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 31



 

 

 Page | 10 

 

Authors and Distribution  
 
Please note that this report has been prepared and distributed in accordance with the agreed Terms of Engagement. The report has been prepared for the sole use of the 
Client.  No responsibility is assumed by us to any other person or organisation.  
 

 
Report Authors 
 
This report was produced and issued by:  
 

 Moya Moore Assistant Director 

 Dan Newens  Principal Auditor 

 Kristian Hawkes Senior Auditor 
 

 
Distribution List 
 
This report has been distributed to the following individuals:  
 

 Gary Evans RIAS Audit Client Manager 
 Mark Thomas Head of Regional Internal Audit Service 
 Lisa Curtis-Jones Director of Social Services 
 Jon Eyre Safeguarding Principal Manager 
 Hannah Brown Organisational Development Manager 
   

 

 

 

P
age 32



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2021/22  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme and approves, 
revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in 
planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached forward work programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 04th July 2021 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 13th July 2021 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 34



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 35



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 36



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 38



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Committee 
Date  

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  Cross Cutting 
Strategies and 

Plans 

8th June 
2021 

Forward Work 

Programme 

2020/2021 

 

Cllr Bill Smith (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The draft Forward Work Programme is developed at 

the beginning of the municipal year by the Members of the Social Services 

Scrutiny Committee, which includes the areas the members wish to focus on 

throughout the year. However, it is a fluid document and it may change due 

to the needs of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee. Therefore, the 

committee is to consider and approve the Forward Work Programme as it 

stands for Social Services (2020/2021). 

Recovery, 

Transformation & 

Improvement Plan 

(Governance) 

The Supporting 
Change Service 
(Strategy Update) 
 

Taryn Stephens (Head of 
Children Service)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Chris 
Davies (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a 
position statement on the Supporting Change Service. The 
report will highlight the progress being made in this service area, areas of 
development and improvement.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

RTI Plan Update 
(Completed 
Projects/ Key 
Projects) 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will provide an 
updated report around the Recovery and transformation plan, looking at 
they key projects. For this meeting an overall update will be given and 
details around the projects that have already been completed.  
 
 
 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
13th July 

2021 
 

Annual Report on 
Social Services 
(2020/21) 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Consultation:- as part of the preparation for the Annual Social Services 
report we are required to consult with stakeholders. This session is with 
scrutiny members to consider the past year and look at areas of 
development in 21/22. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Update on the 
Position of Care 
Homes (Recovery 
Plan) 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Service)/Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a position 
statement on the position within the care home sector. The report will also 
identify key areas for development and improvement.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 

P
age 39



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 (Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Covid Recovery 
Plan 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult  
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: This is to provide an overview to Scrutiny members 
of the past year and the impact on COVID on social services. With a view to 
outlining the plans to recovery.  

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Safeguarding 
Audit Report 
Findings (From 
Internal Audit) 

Jon Eyre (Principal Officer 
for Safeguarding)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Chris 
Davies (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: A corporate review of safeguarding was undertaken 
by Internal audit in April/May 2021. This report outlines the findings and 
recommendations from this audit.  

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

7th 
September 

2021 

Corporate Self 
Evaluation KQ1 - 
Outcomes 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult  
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement. The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key questions 
which is linked to Outcomes. They will be required to scrutinise the proforma 
outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

RTI Plan Update 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will provide an 
updated report around the Recovery and transformation plan, looking at key 
projects.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

P
age 40



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Annual Report on 
Social Services 
(2020/21) 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will present the 
Annual Report on Social Services for 20/21. This report should contain 
all further updates from any additional consultation and previous comments 
made by Scrutiny, before submitting to Full Council. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service 
(YOS) (Annual 
Report - listed for 
Cabinet on 16/06) 
 

Lyndon Lewis (Youth 
Offending Service 
Manager)/Taryn Stephens 
(Head of Children 
Services/ Cllr Chris Davies 
( Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Youth Offending Service (YOS) is a multi-agency 
team which is made up of members of the Police, Probation, Health, 
Education, Substance Misuse and Social Services; as well as other specific to 
the team. The YOS deals with young people between the ages of 10 and 18 
who are involved in the criminal justice system and those who are just on the 
periphery of becoming involved in the system.  
The committee requires a position statement on the performance within the 
Cwm Taf region along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for 
development and improvement for 2020/21 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

12th 
October 

2021 

Annual Report – 
Social Services 
Complaints and 
Compliments 
(2020/21)  
 

Gaynor Lewis (Corporate 
Complaints Officer)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Chris 
Davies (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services 
Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the 
operation of their Social Services Complaints, Representations and 
Compliments Policy and Procedures. 
The complaints reports are completed retrospectively after the complaints 
have been resolved; this can take up to 6-8 months after the financial year. 
The committee has requested an end of year report 
(2020/21) for consideration and challenge. The report should include any 
details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 
The report is also to identify key areas for development and improvement 
for 21/22. 

 
Focus on the 
Future 
SSWBA 

Adult Social Care 
Strategies – Day 
Services (position 
of ds, implications 
of closure and 
support provided) 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Service)/Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a position 
statement in respect of Day Services. The report is also to identify key areas 
for development and improvement.  

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

P
age 41



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Children Services 
Strategies – Early 
Help Hub 
 

Taryn Stephens (Head of 
Children Service)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Chris 
Davies (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children Services will provide a position 
statement in respect of the Early help Hub. The report is 
also to identify key areas for development and improvement. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

23rd 
November 

2021 

Update on Budget 
Position 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an 
update on Social Services budget and areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within 
the department. This report should also give any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 

Children Services 
Strategies – 
Corporate 
Parenting Board 
(also to cover 
CLA) 
 

Taryn Stephens (Head of 
Children Service)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Chris 
Davies (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children Services will provide a position 
statement in respect of the Corporate Parenting Board and Children Looked 
after. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

RTI Plan Update 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will provide an 
updated report around the Recovery and transformation plan, looking at key 
projects.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

4th January 
2022 

Regional 
Partnership 
Business 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position 
summary along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr 
Tydfil 
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

P
age 42



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Corporate Self 
Evaluation KQ2 – 
Provision & 
Service Delivery 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult  
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement. The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key questions 
which is linked to Outcomes. They will be required to scrutinise the proforma 
outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

15th 
February 

2022 

Cwm Taf 
Safeguarding 
Board Annual 
Report (and 
current update) 
 

Nicola Kingham 
(Safeguarding Board 
Manager)/Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Safeguarding is a clear priority for the Council. As a 
Local Authority we have a duty to safeguard children and adults at risk as set 
out by the Social Services and Well-Being Act (SSWBA). Therefore, the 
committee has requested a summary of the Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan, which is to also identify the key areas of improvement 
going forward both regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 
The cover report should include any trend/current data specific Merthyr 
Tydfil and details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been 
overcome. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement for 2021/22. 

 
Focus on the 
Future 
SSWBA 

Adult Advocacy 
Strategy 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Service)/Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014 defines advocacy services as: “services which provide assistance (by 
way of representation or otherwise) to persons for purposes relating to their 
care and support”. The act refers to services being provided by independent 
professional advocates in relation to adults’ and children’s care and support. 
Adult Advocacy was identified as an area for improvement in the Social 
Services Recovery, Transformation, and Improvement Plan. This is an update 
to scrutiny members on the current position regards adult advocacy.  
The report should also provide any details of issues / barriers experienced 
and how these have been overcome and priorities going forward, and any 
analysis of the engagement undertaken and a draft of the co-produced 
strategy (if possible). 
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

RTI Plan Update 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult 
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will provide an 
updated report around the Recovery and transformation plan, looking at key 
projects.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 

P
age 43



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29th March 
2022 

 
 

Corporate Self 
Evaluation KQ3 – 
Leadership & 
Management 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult 
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement. The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key questions 
which is linked to Outcomes. They will be required to scrutinise the proforma 
outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Vale, Valleys & 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative 
(VVC) Annual 
Report 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/ Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Chris 
Davies (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position 
summary for the VVC adoption collaboration, along with a current position 
update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
 

Adults and Young 
Carers Update 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult 
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny on the 
Carers Strategy and the impact it is having on the Adults and Young Carers. 
Details should also be provided on any issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome or how you plan to overcome them. The report is 
also to consider key areas for development and improvement for 2021/22 
within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

 
 

10th May 
2022 

 
 

 
 

Cancelled due to May elections. 

P
age 44



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 

Additional Topics for Consideration  

2020/21 Self-Evaluation 
(3 questions) 
Dates of completion of 
2020/21 SER questions 
are yet to be confirmed. 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) / 
Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement.  The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key 
questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Focus on the Future 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan - 
Adult Advocacy 
 
Item presented on the 
2nd February. This is to 
be brought back to 
Scrutiny 6 months from 
the date it was 
presented to provide 
committee members 
with an update on the 
position/ development 
of this particular item. 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014 defines advocacy services as: “services which provide assistance (by 
way of representation or otherwise) to persons for purposes relating to their 
care and support”. The act refers to services being provided by independent 
professional advocates in relation to adults’ and children’s care and support. 
Adult Advocacy has been identified as an area for improvement in the Social 
Services Recovery, Transformation, and Improvement Plan, therefore, the 
members request an update report to be presented on the development of 
advocacy services for adults. The report should also provide any details of 
issues / barriers experienced and how these have been overcome and 
priorities going forward, and any analysis of the engagement undertaken 
and a draft of the co-produced strategy (if possible). 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 
 
Focus on the Future 
 
SSWBA 

Edge of Care (Strategy 
Update) Deferred from 
April to next committee 
cycle. Agreed by Chair 
on the 14th April 2021. 
 

Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the Future  
 
SSWBA 

 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 The Impact of the Pandemic on Care Homes for Adults
	4 Coronavirus Pandemic - Update on Recovery and Activity
	5 Safeguarding 2020/21 - Internal Audit Report
	Appendix 1

	7 Forward Work Programme 2021/22
	5a. SS Work Programme 2021-2022 - V3 docx.pdf


